
  
  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  tthhee  WWhhoollee  ––  66::3300  pp..mm..    

RReegguullaarr  CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  MMeeeettiinngg  ––  77::0000  pp..mm..  

MMAAYYOORR  CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK 
Bryce Ward 888-4444 Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583 

CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMBBEERRSS  
Michael Welch-  Mayor Pro Tem 488-5834 

Sharron Hunter-  Dep Mayor Pro Tem 488-4282 

Elizabeth Holm – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem    488-6125 

Kevin McCarthy- 590-0800

Thomas McGhee-  455-0010 

Preston Smith - 488-8824 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag

National Anthem sung by NPMS –

3. Invocation

4. Approval of the Agenda

5. Approval of the Minutes

6. Communications from the Mayor

Proclamations 

Lucas Acker – NPHS – February 2014 

Evelyn Jacobson – NPHS – March 2014 

Women’s History Month 

CCIITTYY  OOFF  NNOORRTTHH  PPOOLLEE  

AAllaasskkaa 
RREEGGUULLAARR  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEEETTIINNGG  

MMoonnddaayy,,  MMaarrcchh  1177,,  22001144  



 

 

*Presentation by Donna Gardino with FMATS on summer projects 

 

7.      Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

8.      Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 

         Clerk  

   

9.      Ongoing Projects Report 
 

10.    Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

11.    Old Business 
a. Ordinance 14-02, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska amending Title 4, Chapter 

4.10.010, User Fees 

 

 

12.   New Business 

a. Approval of supplemental contract #8902 between the Alaska Railroad Corporation and the City 

of North Pole for a permit for public road crossings, public roadways and bicycle paths 

 

b. Ordinance 14-03, An Ordinance requesting to purchase replacement vehicle for Statewide Drug 

Enforcement Unit (SDEU) using State of Alaska invitation to bid process  

 

c. Ordinance 14-04, An Ordinance to accept a $708,529.89 Alaska Department of Environmental 

Conservation Municipal Matching Grant for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation 

project and to accept an amendment to USKH, Inc.’s engineering contract to provide bidding and 

construction management services for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project  

 

 

13.  Executive Session - To consider potential claims related to sulfolane contamination 

 

14.  Council Comments 

 

15.    Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired 

individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this service.  All such requests are 

subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are 

available for listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday 

through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is 

located in City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.  



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 3, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

 

   1 
March 3, 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, March 3, 2014 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, March 3, 2014 to order at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Ms. Holm       

Ms. Hunter  

Mr. McCarthy          

Mr. McGhee       

Mr. Smith 

Mr. Welch         

Mayor Ward  

     

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Ward 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Councilman McGhee 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of March 3, 2014 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

Discussion  

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Amend the agenda to consent the following items: 

a. Ordinance 14-02, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska amending Title 4, 

Chapter 4.10.010, User Fees 

 

b. Resolution 14-06, An ordinance of the of the City of North Pole accepting a 

maintenance agreement between the State of Alaska Department of Transportation 

and Public Facilities and the City of North Pole for thirty two decorative streetlights 

on Badger Road and Santa Claus Lane 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 3, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

 

   2 
March 3, 2014 

 

 

Seconded by Ms. Hunter 

 

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Smith, Holm, McCarthy, Hunter, McGhee, Welch, Ward 

NO – 1 –  

Absent – 0 

 

On the agenda as amended 

 

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Smith, Holm, McCarthy, Hunter, McGhee, Welch, Ward 

NO – 1 –  

Absent – 0 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the minutes of February 18, 2014 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

Discussion   

None 

  

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Smith, Holm, McCarthy, Hunter, McGhee, Welch, Ward 

NO – 1 –  

Absent – 0 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

Mark your calendar for Muffins with the Mayor this month!  As always the date is the third 

Friday of the Month from 8-10 AM at North Pole City Hall.   

 

I am continuing my efforts with the Fairbanks Chamber of Commerce and was selected to sit on 

the ‘Instate oil refining committee’  The Fairbanks Chamber has approved a resolution 

supporting the states effort in supporting instate refining.  (see emails for copy of resolution) 

 

Governor Parnell made the announcement last week that the State would work to absolve a new 

buyer of the North Pole Refinery of future liability pertaining to sulfolane cleanup.  North Pole 

needs to keep the refinery viable, however; cleanup of the sulfolane contamination is still a 

pressing issue.   

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 3, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

 

   3 
March 3, 2014 

 

Last week the Air Force came out with the basing criterion for the F-35 basing selection.  Of the 

five bases chosen Eielson and Elmendorf were chosen.  The next step a basing site survey team 

will visit each base and narrow the field to three bases.  It was a bit of a shock to see Elmendorf 

on the list especially when General Carlisle (PACAF) stated that the Air Force would not bed F-

35’s and F-22’s at the same base.  Either way, we must remain positive and show off our 

strengths over Elmendorf AFB.     

 

There has been lots of discussion regarding Flint Hills Resources, today at the Fairbanks 

Chamber of Commerce previous governor Frank Murkowski spoke and told the board that he has 

an offer to buy Flint Hills for just over $140,000,000.  Jeff Cook from Flint Hills was present and 

said ‘the Devil is in the details’ Leaving all of us wondering what that really meant.  The 

message has been relayed that there are several businesses interested in the North Pole Refinery; 

however the details are what make or break the deal.   

 

I have been in contact with the Alaska Rail Road in regard to the outstanding contract payments 

not paid for the years of 2009-2011.  The contract is for the upgrades done at the cross way and 

8
th

 ave crossings and maintenance.  The railroad has tentatively agreed to have the three years 

delinquent payments added to the end of the contract so long as we continue to honor our 

contract.  The new agreement will come before council as soon as it has been drafted and 

reviewed by our legal.   

 

Last week I was out of town for the ESGR BOSS lift to Guam.  It was a very educational 

experience and gave me new insight into the dynamic of our Guard and Reserve units.  We 

toured four branches of the military, Army, Navy and Air Force, including the Coast Guard 

which is now under Department of Homeland Security.   I learned the difference between a 

Reserve unit and a Guard Unit and that driving a Humvee in a combat situation is harder than it 

looks.  Tom Hewitt with News 13 in Fairbanks went along with us and did several stories on the 

trip. 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

Ms. Hunter asked about an email they received about Lisa Vaughn. 

Ms. Weber stated that it was something that they would need to be apprised of at a later date. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Accountant, Lisa Vaughn 

None 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 3, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

 

   4 
March 3, 2014 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler  

March 3, 2014 City Council Report 

Bill Butler 

Director of City Services 

Building Department 

 No new permit applications since last council meeting 

 FNSB released a request for bids for renovation of NPHS Vocational Wing 

A major project that will exceed $1 million 

Bids will be opened March 13 

Public Works 

 Repair of dump truck cost $14,000 

Vehicle maintenance budget is in deficit by ~$3,000 

 FNSB delayed release of bus shelter request for proposals until last week. 

Bid opening March 20 

Plan is still to construct shelters in summer 2014 

Plans call for electric at North Pole’s shelter—can use for electronic schedule and 

      heat. 

Utility Department 

 Utility 2013 annual report will be included in this month’s utility bills 

Purpose of the report is to keep utility customers informed 

Copy of the report is attached 

 Had first Compliance Order by Consent (COBC) meeting to begin formalizing steps to 

resolve problem with sewer system outfall 

City’s approval to purchase land adjacent to WWTP was viewed positively by ADEC 

      as City being proactive 

Utility’s focus is still on dry discharge channel as priority solution 

First step in COBC will be to obtain a sewer discharge permit to land 

ADEC going to require Utility to analyze multiple options—this will be expensive 

 With approval of February 18 minutes will begin the process to purchase land adjacent to 

            WWTP 

Submission of City Charter and resolution passed on February 18, with February 18 

minutes will start process to purchase the land 

Have presented suggestion to Borough to exchange some land in vicinity of WWTP 

with one another to make each entities’ land more useable (see map on back) 

Natural Gas Utility Board 

 Gas utility held its Design Charrette at North Pole City Hall on Monday, February 24 

The Charrette appeared to function positively by informing agencies and businesses 

that could affect permitting related to installing pipes in the ground 

 Board’s president and manager are in Anchorage meeting with AIDEA to discuss 2014- 

            2021 financing 

 Without release of state funding to IGU it cannot move forward with engineering and 

           design 

 

Police Department, Chief Dutra 

 Chief Dutra  presented Officer Bruce Milne his Basic Certificate. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 3, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

 

   5 
March 3, 2014 

 

 Chief Dutra will be out of town for Ethics training in Anchorage. 

 Stats for February 2014 are before council tonight. 

 Officer Bean, is the new DUI Officer. 

 Our BDA project is delayed due to equipment ordering.  Procomm promised to be 

complete before March 31
st
 deadline. 

 Arctic Winter Games is coming to North Pole and the department will be adding more 

officers during that time. 

 

Fire Department, Chief Lane 

 Chief Lane spoke about the Great Alaska ShakeOut that will take place later this month.  

Mr. McGhee stated that this was an out of date pamphlet and that there are new studies 

out there and requested that Chief Lane look for newer information. Mr. Smith asked 

when the Shake House would be back in the vicinity. 

 Ms. Holm asked about volunteers.  Chief Lane said he has talked with daycares & 

schools. 

 Mr. Smith asked about St. Baldericks and when it was.  Chief Lane said that it starts on 

March 15
th

. 

 Mr. Smith asked how the department likes the new ambulance.  Chief Lane said that it 

was put into the fleet immediately and the crew likes it.  He was in Nebraska this past 

week. 

 Arctic Winter Games is getting ready to start this month.  Wrestling and Badminton will 

be held in North Pole.  There are approximately 2000 athletes that will compete. 

 

Borough Representative, Mayor Ward 

None 

 

 

City Clerk    

 Public Official Financial Disclosure Statements (POFD) are before you tonight.  The 

deadline is March 15
th

.  Even if you file online you must still submit a copy to my office.  

Please come and see me if you need any assistance. 

 Mac Haus is willing to come out and do a workshop with the council on the use of the i-

pads and help getting them set up.  Please let me know when a good time will be for all 

of you.   

 A very special thank you to Tom Blair and Cody Lougee for the beautiful book case they 

made and installed in the file room to store our Ordinances, Resolutions, and minutes. 

 I will be out of the office from March 5 – 7 but still available by phone and email on the 

6
th

 & 7
th

. 
 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 3, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

 

   6 
March 3, 2014 

 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
North Pole Economic Development – Nadine Winters 

 Ms. Winters gave the council a copy of a draft Radius Study put together by NPEDC.   

 Will be working on a new website  

 Rewriting bylaws of North Pole Economic Development 

 Bumper stickers and support forms were given to the Clerk for the front counter for 

support of the F-35’s.  They are trying to register 10,000 people in the FNSB for their 

support of the F-35’s.  There are also banners that have been made to put on business 

websites and they can contact Ms. Winters. 

 

Mr. Welch asked if council could have a workshop with Ms. Winters on the Radius Study. 

 

March 6, 7, & 8
th

 NPEDC will host the North Pole Sled race at Morning Star Park. 

 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
None 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
None 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Mr. McGhee – be careful on the roads as it is deceiving and can be dangerous. 

 

Mr. Welch – last week was a hectic week in Juneau.  He was fortunate to meet with 18 different 

lawmakers.  He also attended the Conference of Mayors and then had the opportunity to meet 

with other lawmakers on Thursday and Friday.   

 

Ms. Holm – thanked the NPMS students for coming to the council meetings and to the 

department heads for doing a good job. 

 

Ms. Hunter – Goodnight. 

 

Mr. Smith – thanked everyone for coming out and to NPMS students for attending the meetings. 

 

Mr. McCarthy – thanked everyone for coming tonight. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

March 3, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

 

   7 
March 3, 2014 

 

 

Mayor Ward - Goodnight 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee adjourned the meeting at 7:57 p.m. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

The regular meeting of March 3, 2014 adjourned at 7:57 p.m. 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, March 17, 2014. 

  

      ____________________________________ 

       Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

                             

_________________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 

















































































Sponsored by: Mayor Ward
Introduced and Advanced: March 3,2014

Adopted & Passed: March 17,2014

CITY OF NORTH POLE

ORDINANCT. M.O2

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 4.10.010, USER FEES

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement;
and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the
requirements of the Cþ and to provide clarif,rcation as needed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Pole:

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.
Section 2. General Provisions of the North Pole Municipal Code of Ordinances are

amended as follows:

4.10.010 Establishment of User Fees.
The mayor shall examine the services provided by the city and estalish a user fee schedule with
council concurrence. The council shall periodically review the user fee schedule and set user

fees as appropriate. (Ord. 03 - 1 0 ç2, 2003), (Ord. 05 - I 7 $2,2005 )

Ambulance Fee $ 800.00

Ambulance Fee Discount for North Pole Residents $ 400.00

Ambulance/Patient transport mileage (loaded miles) S 11.00 oer m le

Ambulance/Patient transport mileage (loaded miles)
Discount for North Pole Residents

$ 5.50 per mile

Fire/Ambulance Run Reports $ 2s.00

Audio Recording of Public Meetings or any other CD/DVD(fee
collected when orderins. per tape)

$ 10.00

Building Permit Fees Based on building evaluation and1997
Uniform Administrative Code

City Annual Business License $ s0.00

Citv Business/Sales Tax Mailine Labels (fee collected when orderine) s 2s.00

Copies of Public Records $1.00 1st ps: $0.25 thereafter
City Newsletter Mailing Labels $ 2s.00
Declaration of Candidacy Filine Fee $ 2s.00
Faxes send/receive local calline area (per pase) $ 1.00

Faxes send lons distance in U.S. only (per pase) $ 2.00

FinserDrintins oer card $ 20.00
Fireworks Annual Permit to Retail Vendor of Class'oC" Fireworks $3,000.00

Hydrant Meter Charge $ 50.00/mo.lmin)



Hvdrant Meter'Water Usage Rate $ 0.02lGallon

Made ín North Pole- permít ìs $50 per product line with ø maximum
of $100 per permit application
llaive fee, up to 850 per øpplicatíon for I't 20 approved applicalíons

,t s0.00

Notarv Services oer document $ s.00

Plan Specifications Copies (per set) $ 2s.00

Police Reports $ 2s.00

Photo Coov Fee (per pase) $ 0.2s

Water/Sewer Connection Inspection Fee $ 50.00 each

Residential and commercial properties water and sewer fees shall be

the following (per NPMC 13.08.090 B)
Water tie-in fee - 3/+ inches to 2 inches

Sewer tie-in fee -3/o inches to 2 inches
Water tie-in fee - Greater than 2 inches up to 4 inches

Sewer tie-in fee - Greater than 2 inches up to 4 inches

Water - Greater than 4 inches
Sewer - Greater than 4 inches

$ 200.00
$ 200.00
$ 2s0.00
$ 2s0.00
$ 300.00
$ 300.00

Residential Water Meter Replacement $ 100.00

Commercial'Water Meter Replacement At replacement cost

V/ater meter monitor replacement $ 100.00

(Ord.03-10 Chapter 4.10,2003), (Ord.06-11 $2þart),2006), (Ord.l1-06 $2 (part),2011), (Ord
14-02 $2(paQ, 2014)

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 pm on the first City business

day following its adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
lTth day of March, 2014.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk

PASS/FAIL
Yes:
No:
Absent:

City of North Pole
Ordinance L4-02 Page2



City of North Pole, Alaska

Fiscal Note Year: 2oi4

Accompanying Ordinance/Resolution #: Ordinance 14-02

Originator / Sponsor Name: Mayor Bryce Ward

Date: 2-20'14

Does the Ordinance or Resolution have a fiscal impact? yes ø no!

Summary: (Brief description of proposed alterations as defined by accompanying

ordinance or resolution. Where did the money come from and how will it be used).

Prepared By:

Finance Approval:

NOTE- Fiscal notes attached to an ordinance are considered amendments to the budget and do

not require an additional approval for insertion into the budget document.

Fund- Dept. Title Account Description Account # Increase/(Decrease)

Fund 1 Admin Promotion 01-01-00-7003 -$ 1,000.00

Fund 1 Revenue Made ln North Pole 01-00-00-4045 -$ 1,000.00

First 20 approved applications for a single product line are promotional (free, up to $50 per application)

maximum 20 applications. Revenues will be offset by decrease in promotional line item in Admin.


































































































































































	AG-03-17-14
	Min-03-03-14
	Mayor's Communications
	Proclamation - Lucas Acker Feb Student of the Month
	Proclamation - Evelyn Jacobson - March Student of the Month
	Proclamation - Women's History Month
	Rep. Isaacson - Newletter for 3-13-14
	Fairbanks Arts Assoc - Mayors' Awards for the Arts Nomination Form
	Gov Parnells' letter to Senator Begich
	State of Alaska vs Williams AK Petro; FHR
	State of Alaska - PERS Undefined Acturial Accrued Liability 
	Letter from Rep Wilson on Pioneer Park
	Old Business - Ord 14-02 Amending Title 4 User Fees
	New Business - Approve supplemental Contract #8902 between ARRC and CNP
	New Business - Ord 14-03 Request to purchase replacement vehcile for SDEU using SOA IFB process
	New Business - Ord 14-04 CNP Accept grant increase from ADEC for MMG #63323 for WWTP Rehab & Amdn USKH Contract
	Executive Session - To consider potential claims related to sulfolane contamination



